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CORPORATE SERVICES COMMISSION 
Clerk's Department 

REGISTERED MAIL 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ONTARIO HERITAGE ACT, R.S.0. 1990, CHAPTER 0.18; 

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE LAND AND PREMISES IN PART OF LOT 23, 
CONCESSION 4, KNOWN MUNICIPALLY AS 10327 WOODBINE AVENUE, TOWN • 

OF MARKHAM, IN THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO. 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO DESIGNATE 

TO: The Ontario Heritage Foundation 
Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Recreation 
400 University Avenue, 4th Floor 
Toronto, Ontario 
M7A2R9 
Attention: Ms. Rita Caldarone 

TAKE NOTICE THAT the Council of The Corporation of the Town of 
Markham intends to designate the property, including land and building, 
known municipally as 10327 Woodbine Avenue, Markham, as a property 
of architectural and/or historic interest or value under Part 1V of The 
Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter 0.18. 

A Statement of the Reasons for the Proposed Designation of The Adam 
Hagler House is attached. 

NOTICE OF OBJECTION to the designation may be served on the Town 
Clerk within thirty (30) days, or before 4:30 p.m. on the 1 Oth day of 
January, 2002. 

Sheila Birrell 
Town Clerk 
The Town of Markham 
101 Town Centre Boulevard 
Markham, ON L3R 9W3 

December 11, 2001 

Town of Markham Anthony Roman Centre 101 Town Centre Boulevard, Markham, Ontario L3R 9W3 
(905) 477-7000 • Fax (905) 479-7771 • Website: www.city.markham.on.ca 
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Historical Background 

The Adam Hagler House is believed to have been built c.1840 by Adam Hagler, who is believed 
to have been of Pennsylvania German origin. 

The property at 10327 Woodbine Avenue was first settled in the late 1790s by Jacob Meisener 
(also spelled Neissner). Meisener was · one of the original Markham settlers who had 
accompanied William Berczy to Markham from Germany in 1794. 

According to property records, Meisener was still farming the property in 1811, when he received 
title lo the property from the Town. 

Within a year, Meisener sold the property to a Sebastian Hegler (also spelled Hagler) who is 
believed to be of Pennsylvania German origin. By 1835 the property was sold by a Christian 
Hegler, to Adam Hagler for 100 pounds. 

By the time of the 1846 Township of Markham Directory, Adam Hagler is listed as residing on 
the property. Architectural evidence obtained from the house provides a strong indication that 
the house at 10327 Woodbine Avenue was built in the late 1830s, and therefore it is assumed that 
the house was built by Adam Hagler. 

By the time of the 1850-51 Directory, a Jacob Hagler is listed on the property, along with a Hugh 
Robinson. Robinson appears in the 1851 Census residing with his family in a frame dwelling, 
Hagler does not appear in the 1851 Census of Markham however, which indicates that by that 
time the Hagler family had moved elsewhere and were leasing the property to the Robinson's. 
Less than one year later, in 1852, Adam Hagler sold the property to Jacob Heise for 900 pounds. 
Jacob Heise was the grandson of Joseph Heise, a Pennsylvania German who came to Canada, 
settling on the Eighth Concession of Markham in 1806. Hugh Robinson is identified as residing 
in a house on the property on the 1853-54 and 1860 Maps of Markham Township. The 1860 
map refers to Hugh Robinson as "Occupant". 

According to the 1851 Census, Hugh Robinson was a farmer by occupation, born in England, 
aged 55 and was a member of the Church of England. He was Ii ving there with his wife Barbara 
Robinson, aged 47 who was born in the USA and was also a member of the Church of England. 
Also living in the household were their four children, Hanna, aged 24, Margaret, aged 21, John, 
aged 18, Jacob, aged 11, along with Hamilton Pandon, aged 3. 

By the time of the 1861 Census it appears that a number of changes had occurred in the Robinson 
Household. Hugh Robinson evidently passed away the previous year, and at this point the house 
was occupied by Barbara, Hannah and Jacob. All three are by this time identified as members of 
the Tunker Church, of which the property owner, Jacob Heise was also a leading member. The 
1861 Census is evidently very frank about the condition of the three occupants of the house since 
Barbara Robinson, aged 62 is listed as a "Lunatic", Hannah Robinson, aged 27, is listed as "Deaf 
and Dumb" and Jacob Robinson, aged 18, is also listed as a "Lunatic". 



The Tunker Church of which many occupants of this house were members was related 
doctrinally and historically to the Mennonites. Their belief in baptism by immersion led to their 
persecution in Hesse Kassell; the group emigrated to Pennsylvania where they were known as 
Dunkards. An offshoot of the Dunkards in Pennsylvania was the group known as River 
Brethren, organized by two Dunkards Jacob Engel and John Wenger. They wished to be more 
active in missionary and evangelistic work, to which the original church was opposed. The name 
came from the fact that the group were organized near the great Susquehanna River. 

A number of Pennsylvania German families of the River Brethren beliefs settled before 1808 in 
the north-west part of Markham Township. In 1808-Bishop Engel organized the Heise Hill 
congregation in Markham Township with Christian Steckley as its first bishop. Founding 
families in the congregation were the Heise's and the Eyer's. Until 1868, the services were held 
in the homes of the various members of the congregation. Jacob Heise is listed in the church 
records as one of the members in whose home the services were held. These services were 
conducted in German, a fact which underlines the bi-lingual character of Markham at the time. 

In 1872 Jacob Heise sold 50 acres of the south half of the west half of Lot 23, Concession 4 to 
his daughter Nancy Eyer who was the wife of David Eyer for $2.00. The Eyer family were also 
leading members of the Brethren in Christ, Tunker congregation at Heise Hill (Located on 
Woodbine Avenue north of 19'h Avenue). David Eyer's family were prominent in the vicinity of 
Headford (Major Mackenzie Drive and Leslie Street) where John Eyer was the owner of a 
gristmill and Woollen Mill in the 1860s. 

The 1871 Census indicates that the subject property was occupied by David Eyer, a Tunker, aged 
35; Nancy (Heise) Eyer, aged 43; John Tomkins, a student of Irish origin, aged 14; Elizabeth 
Pease, a student of English origin, aged 12; and Samuel Heise, presumably a brother of Nancy, 
who is identified as a Labourer aged 20. It is believed that because the property was so close to 
the local school, located to the south that area children billeted in the house at 10327 Woodbine 
during the school year. In the 1871 Directory, David Eyer is listed as a Farmer, Freehold, Lumber 
Merchant and Stave manufacturer. 

The 1878 Map of Markham Township indicates that David Eyer was the owner of the property 
and that there were at this time two buildings on the property, the second located north and west 
of the subject dwelling. It is believed that the second dwelling was a temporary structure built 
for workers at Eyer's mills or on the farm. 

By the time of the 1881 Census David Eyer is shown to be residing on the property with his wife 
Anna, who were then aged 45 and 53 respectively. 

In 1885 the entire west half of the property was sold by Nancy Eyer to Edward McKenzie for 
$8025. In the Directory of 1892, McKenzie is listed as residing on the property as a farmer. 

In 1891, shortly after paying off his mortgage on the property, Edward McKenzie sold the entire 
100 acre property to Isaac Brumwell. The Brumwell family had resided in the vicinity for many 
years in a large estate farmhouse on Lot 27, Concession 4. They were active members of both 



the Victoria Square Methodist Church and later the Brethren in Christ Tunker Church at Heise 
Hill. It is believed that for a number of years, Edward McKenzie continued to reside in the house 
as a tenant. By the early 1900s, the Brumwells began construction of a large brick 
Edwardian/Queen Anne house that stands slightly to the north today. Although the Brumwells 
new house was one of the largest in the vicinity, they continued to maintain the small frame 
cottage built in the mid-I 91

h Century, presumably as a home for farm workers. 

In 1975, after over 80 years of ownership, the Brumwells sold the subject property to 226603 
Investments Limited as a future development site. The home has continued to be tenanted until 
the present day. 

Architectural Background 

The Adam Hagler House is a good example of a simple vernacular Markham farmhouse from the 
mid-1800s built out of wood with the influence of the Georgian Style. The rear wing of the 
house is believed to have been constructed or expanded at a later date. 

The house is 1 Y2 storeys in height with a three bay fa~ade. The house features unusually small 
window openings, which provide some indication of the early date of construction of the house. 
The front part of the house is clad in vertical tongue and groove wood and features elements of 
the original returned eaves on the gable ends. A historic photograph of the house, taken c.1900 
indicates that the house may have originally been clad in a rough cast stucco with contrasting 
comer boards, and was possibly re-clad in vertical tongue and groove wood at some point in the 
early 201

h Century. This scenario would provide an indication as to why the walls on the house 
appear to be excessively thick. 

In addition to the different cladding, the c.1900 photograph shows that the house had two gable 
end corbelled chimneys and a hipped roof front porch which has since been closed in. The 
photograph reveals that the house did not have shutters. 

The roof of the house is believed to have originally been clad in wood shingles. 

Contextual Background 
The Adam Hagler house is visible from Woodbine Avenue and is an important reminder of the 
historic agricultural tradition in the area. The house forms part of the greater community of 
Victoria Square and is one of the last remnants of a cluster of rural farmhouses that once existed 
in this area. 
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Inventory No.: 

Assessment Roll No.: 

Date of Construction: 

Style of Architecture: 

Type of Structure: 

Number of Storeys: 

Exterior Wall Material: 

Special Features: 

The Adam Hagler House 
10327 Woodbine Avenue 
Lot 23, Concession 4 

1212763 Ontario Limited (Azuria) 

03-12 

160-070-00 

c.1840 

Georgian Vernacular 

Farm Residence 

I 'I, 

Vertical Wood 
Stone Foundation 

Georgian Vernacular Form 
Small windows; 
Returned Eaves 
Stone Foundation 




